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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

“Mineral Hall " is situated within a predominately residential/cultural area which
forms a part of the Westport District of Kansas City, known as South Hyde Park.
Located near the northwest corner of the intersection of Forty-Fourth and Oak
Streets, the structure is directly north of the Kansas City Art Institute.

"Mineral Hall," designed by Louis S. Curtiss, is an eclectic Prairie Style amalgam
of Second Empire, Art Nouveau and Neoclassic elements.

Assymetrical in shape, the near-rectangular mass has four projecting extensions
placed to the north, south, west and northwest elevations. The maximum dimensions
measure approximately 75 feet wide by 55 feet deep. The structure, placed above
grade, contains a basement and three stories. The main facade looks east onto Oak
Street.

Uncoursed Tlimestone blocks form the foundations. The principal material of the
exterior_walls is Jackson County oolitic Timestone with heavy rock face of random
pattern.1 Limestone blocks are also used to form the quoining and voussoirs,

The first story of the east facade contains four bays. The first bay (near the
extreme south edge of the facade) contains a stone veranda; the second, a center
double-sash window flanked by shorter double-sash windows. The facade is dominated
by the central main entrance, approached by seven wide, cut-limestone steps bound
on either side by stone wall abutments, topped by wrought iron orb lamp standards
and stone planters. The entrance arch is composed of voussoirs of alternating
Tength, the larger all the same size as the keystone. Within are contained four
receding semi-circular compound, mosaic-decorated arches, with imported yellow,
green and copper colored tesserae, inlaid in a banded design. The glazed single-
leaf door is flanked by sige windows; the door and the window openings are shaped
in the Art Nouveau manner.¢ The door and side windows consist of bevelled leaded
crystal in rectilinear and curved floriate patterns. The remaining bay contains
a bow window flanked by windows. It is composed of three double-sash and two art
glass windows. They are crowned by a red clay tiled pediment.

The second story has a set of three short windows located in the central bay above
the main entrance. Other windows are placed in the remaining bays. A majority

of the windows contained on all facades are rectangular double-sash with segmental
flat arches, white stone sills and radiating stone voussoirs.

Wrought iron angular scroll brackets support the wide overhanging eaves which
form a horizontal division between second and attic story.

On the attic level, a band of three clerestory windows extends horizontally along
the facade above the eaves. Each window employs elongated leaded art glass center
windows flanked on either sgde by small double-sash windows. Between thses are a
pair of Second Empire style® dormers consisting of oval, single-paned windows
placed in scrolled cartouche metal frames.

(Continued)
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The south facade is dominated by an open veranda on the first story with an
enclosed porch above. The rectangular stone veranda has a low tongue-in-groove
covered ceiling. A semi-octangular wood frame entrance is placed against
the center bay of the facade, which gives access to the dining room. Square
stone Piwrs support the enclosed second-story porch, with a stone parapet

- curved upward at the corners which adjoin the building mass. Above are paired
windows, six wide on the south face and three wide on either side. A horizon-
tal wooden string-course separates the two stories. The porch was originally
treated in the manner of a pergola. A wide overhanging cornice originally
divided the first and second stories of the porch.4

A ground-level, rectangular, singie-story wing adjoins the extreme south edge
of the west facade. Windows with Tozenge tracery are placed at grade level
along the sides. Above is a tar-surfaced sundeck enclosed by an X-shaped
wooden balustrade between square stone piers. On the first story directly
above the projecting wing are paired art glass windows crowned by a clay tile
pediment similar in design to the one on the east facade.

On the remainder of the west facade, a diagonal opening located at the ground
level in the central bay gives access to the basement. Double-sash windows
on the first story are placed in rectangular architraves. In the central bay
of the second story is a short single-sash window, with double-sash windows
placed in the remaining bays. Centrally placed at the attic level is a four-
window, hip-roofed dormer.

A single-story wood frame back porch is situated within a recessed northwest

corner, The shed-roofed tongue-in-groove structure is windowed on all sides

and has a west entrance. A small double-sash window with clay tile siding is
placed in a wall dormer at the attic level.

The north facade is dominated by a single-story semi-octangular uncoursed

stone addition. The sill of the alternating three oval leaded art glass
double-sash windows and two plain double-sash windows is formed of a string-
coursing of smooth, coursed, white stone. Above runs a white stone entablature
joined by metal braces at the corners. The hip roof is covered with red clay
tiles.

Originally wave moulding ornamented the cornices of the first-story pediments
on the east and west facades and on the north facade addition. It was
removed November 1974. Located near the western edge of the facade is an
elevated side entrance. On the western edge is a single opening.

{Continued)
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On the second story is a central double-sash window flanked by leaded art
glass side windows which are angled slightly into the wall face. A solitary
doubie-sash window is placed near the eastern edge of the facade.

A wide boxed cornice supported by wrought iron angular scroll brackets is
interrupted at four corners by stone piers which extend above the roof line.
Wooden brackets support a boxed cornice around the roof of the south enclosed
porch.

The hip roof is covered with red Spanish clay tiles. Asphalt composition:
shingles surface the roofs of the northwest porch and south porch. Three
massive stone chimneys project above the walls near the southeast, north-
east and southwest corners.

Interior:

The full basement has a concrete floor. Later lath and plaster walls
partition the basement into four rooms. Brick posts support the wall
partitions of the upper floors.

On the upper floors, interior partitions are of wood stud construction with
lath and plaster walls. The floors are of oak and the woodwork is hardwood.

A central hall located on an east-west axis divides the first floor. Enclosed
at the rear of the hall is a secondary U-shaped staircase extending from

the basement to the attic floors. It ascends with three runs to a floor.

The newels and balusters are square; the bannisters are shaped.

At the west end of the hall, on the north side, the enclosed main staircase
rises in a single run terminating at the second floor. The lower steps are
curved on the east side. Vertically ribbed wainscoting on either side is
surmounted .by foliated volute-shaped newels carved in high relief. The
volutes and wainscoting are of quarter-sawn oak. The terminate one-third of
the way up the stajrcase. A bannister voluted at both ends is located on the
west wall.

On either side of the main entrance the walls curve inward to form a narrower
space. Midway along the south wall is a door to an unusual triangular-shaped
closet. To the north of the main hall are located the 1ibrary, mineral
exhibition room and the kitchen and service areas. To the south are located
the parlor and dining room.

(Continued)
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A wide flat-arched opening gives assess to the library. The ends of the

south wall are angled 45°, A fireplace, faced with white ceramic tiles with

a mantel supported by wide, deep brackets with acanthus ornaments, is situated
against the north wall. Above the mantel is a mirror. Round arched alcoves
flank the fireplace, each containing paired baseboard drawers, glass-fronted
bookcases, diamond-paned casement windows (except in the east alcove) and
pendent lights with orb-shaped globes. MWave moulding runs horizontally across
the top of the bookcases and the mantel front. Slender accentuated pilasters
encircle the room supporting a moulded string-course approximately two feet
below the ceiling.

A door to the west of the alcoves gives access to the mineral display room.
Encircling the walls are display cabinets with art glass doors. Above are
uncoursed stone walls with mineral specimens emhedded in the mortar. A
radius of wood rafters supports the arched ceiling. Pendent orb Tamps are
placed at the base of each rafter.

Directly west of the library is located the kitchen. Along the south wall
are placed storage cabinets and drawers. A doorway on the north wall gives
access to the back porch. A pantry located between the secondary stair
well and the west wall serves as a corridor to the dining room.

The dining room contains a rusticated gray stone fireplace with an arched
hearth opening located against the west wall. Above is a wooden mantel
surmounted by paired leaded art glass windows. Accentuated pilasters and
moulded string-coursing encircle the room.

A flat arch double-width entry leads into the parlor, east of the dining

room. This room is presently partitioned into two spaces. Against the south
is a fireplace faced with brown and yellow tesserae, laid in random pattern.
The wooden mantle, similar to that in the library, features wave moulding and
acanthus brackets. The ends of the north wall are angled at 45°. 1In both

the parlor and the library, these angled walls are filled with either a
full-length mirror or a bookcase. Accentuated pilasters support a moulded
string-coursing. Throughout the first story, this flat, decorative architec-
tural motif visually divides and ornaments the wall spaces. The original
double-width entrances of the parlor, library, and dining room are now blocked
by later partitions and doors.

The second floor is divided by a central hallway on a north-south axis off
of which open all five bedrooms. Enclosing the stair well is a balustrade of
slender, uniformly turned balusters and shaped bannister with horizontal

(Continued)
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volutes at both ends. A bathroom is located at the northwest corner. It has
hexagonal white tile floors and glazed rectangular white tile wainscoting. A
corridor along the interior west wall connects two of the bedrooms. A fire-
place is placed in the bedroom directly above the Tibrary. Rectangular glass
transoms surmount the bedroom and attic doors.

The undivided attic consists of a large polygonal space with sloping walls

and a flat ceiling. Along the east wall windows extend in a band horizontally
along the floor. Two oval dormer windows are placed in pointed-arch alcoves.
An alcove at the west wall contains the balustrade-enclosed stair well.

PRESENT STATUS

Since the building's donation by tEe Kemper-Sosland estate, to the

Kansas City Art Institute in 1968, "Mineral Hall" has been renovated from
its former residential use into faculty studio space for use by the Art
Institute. The building also contains offices and serves as headquarters
for the Union of Independent Colleges of Art. There is

presently no threat of demolition of the residence or redevelopment of the
area.

The condition and maintenance of the structure is good.
SQURCES QF INFORMATION

1. Kansas City Star, Sunday, September 11, 1904, p. 13, "New House Built
by Mr. Rule."

2. Donald L. Hoffman, "The House with the Art Nouveau," Kansas City
Times, July 15, 1965, p. 12A.

3. Ibid.

4. C. W. Whitney, Kansas City, Missouri, Its History and Its People,
1800-1908, S. J. Clarke Publishing Co., Kansas City, Missouri, Vol. II, p. ¢
19
5. Recorder of Deeds Office, Jackson County Courthouse (Kansas City Annex),
415%E. 12th Street, Kansas City, Missouri, 64106.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

"Mineral Hall," residence of R. E. Bruner, is one of the most distinctive turn-of-the
century residences Tocated within the South Hyde Park area of Kansas City, Missouri. Sout
Hyde Park formed an integral part of the residential area in the city of Westport, which
itself became a section of Kansas City after its annexation in 1897. The incorporation of
these two cities brought an influx of many influential citizens and wealth into the area,
providing impetus for the erection of numerous ornate and spacious homes. "Mineral Hall"
is an exceptional example of this prosperity and cultural development that the area and
Kansas City attained as 1t entered into the twentieth century.

"Mineral Hall," constructed in fourteen months during 1903-1904 at a cost of $25,000]

has a semi-octangular north addition built the following year. Both the main structure
and the add;tion are major examples of the works of the late Kansas City architect, Louis
S. Curtiss.c The construgtion of the residence was under the direction of Henry H. Johnso
a local stone contractor.

The residence displays fine examples of Art Nouveau decorations. The main entrance of
imported mosaics and leaded glass, as well as areas of the interior ornamentation, attest
to this. Other decorative sources include the Second Empire and Neoclassic styles. Other
features, including the textural employment of stone on the facades, the low profile of
the wings, and the wide overhanging cornice, emphasize a strong horizontality of line and
surface, with piers and muilions Tending vertical accents to the mass. These horjzontal
expressions bear ciose reference to homes designed by Frank Lloyd Wright, George W. Maher,
and the Prairie School of Architecture in the early 1900's.% This design and the esthetic
visual quality make the house unique in the region.

ARCHITECT

Louis S. Curtiss (1865-1927) was born in Canada. He arrived in Kansas City in the late
1880's, being appointed assistant superintendent of buildings in 1889.

His first major commission included designs for several sections of the old City Hall
Building built in 1891-1892, igc]uding the foundations which incorporated vitrified brick
piles in boiler iron caissons.”® Curtiss was the first architect to employ caisson foundat

Louis Curtiss joined with Frederic C. Gunn (1865-1959) to form the firm of Gunn and Curtis:
These two men designed the Church of the Soldiers Home in Leavenworth, Kansas; the Progres:
Club House; and several residences.®

{Continued)
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In 1899, the Baltimore Hotel was completed from Curtiss' designs. The
Baltimore was later enlarged with two upper stories and a ten-story addition
adjoining the original structure. It was demolished in 1939. The Willis

Wood Theater was one of Curtiss' most sumptuous buildings. Designed after

the moder9 French school its inspiration was said to have derived from L'Opera
in Paris. It was destroyed by fire in 1917.

Curtiss" Boley Clothing Store Building, built in 1909, employs a major
innovation in American architectural design. This structure anticipated by
some forty years the popular usage of metal and glass curtain-wall constructic
surpassing by nine years W. J. Polk's more famous glass curtain-wall Hallidie
Building in San Francisco. In 1908-1909, Louis Curtiss employed the curtain-
wall technique is his own office/apartment building in downtown Kansas City.
(Both curtain-wall structures, as well as Curtiss' Standard Theatre (1900) in
Kansas City and Union Depot (1910-1911) in Joplin, Missouri, are listed on

the National Register of Historic Places.)

Commissions during his later period became abundant and included designs for
stores, offices, residences, churches and other regional and non-regional
buildings. Examples include the E1 Bisante Hotel built in 1906 in Hutchinson.
Kansas, and the Harvey Houses built in 1907 in Emporia, Syracuse, and
Wellington, Kansas. 1In 1912 the Union Terminal in Wichita was completed.
Residences include the Bernard Corrigan House (1913); the A. W. Riegelman
House (1914); the Wookey House (1915} in Toronto, Canada; and the Jesse Hoel
House (1916) in Kansas City, Kansas. Louis S. Curtiss died in 1924.9

Two distinguished Kansas City citizens enlisted the talents of Louis Curtiss
for the plans of this residence, William A. Rule and Roland E. Bruner.

William A. Rule (1858-c.1918) was born and educated in St. Louis, Missouri.
In 1887, he came to Kansas City, accepting the position of Chief Clerk in
the National Bank of Commerce, later serving as Cashier.

Rule commissioned the architectural firm of Gunn and Curtiss to design
a large residence for himself on the Borth section of his block-Tong estate.
The residence was completed in 1899.1 After the Convention Hall was destroyr
by fire in April 1900, he was one of several gentlemen instrumental in
raising funds to construct a new Convention Hall. It was completed in time
to house the 1900 Democratic Convention. Rule served as Treasurer of the
Convention By 1903, construction began on a second residence, south of his
home. His purpose 1n erecting the structure was "to maintain the quality of
the neighborhood."] Rule never resided there.

(Continued)
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These years were highly Tucrative for Rule. By 1908, he was a Director
of the Kansas City Life Insurance Company and the Commerce Trust Company.
He served as Treasurer of the Kansas City, Mexico,_?ad Orient Railroad Company
the International Construction Company; and others. About 1910, Rule,
dealing with investments, established a prominent local firm, the W. A. Rule
Investment Company, in which he served as President until 1918. William A.
Rule's name last appears in the City Directories for 1918.

Roland E. Bruner (1860-1941) was born in Pennsylvania and educated in Kansas.
In 1880, he became Clerk to the Office of the Superintendent of Motor Power
and Machinery of the Kansas City, Fort Scott, and Gulf Railway. About 1893,
he became Manager and Auctioneer of the Kansas City Fruit Auction and Cold
Storage Company. During the 1890's, Bruner acquired interests in mining,
accumulating extensive mining properties and investments. By 1908, he had
become President of several firms, including the Anaconda-Arizona Minin?
Company, the Missouri Lithograph Marble and Mining Company, and others. 3

During this period, Bruner, with his vast knowledge and experience in mining,
created one of the most magnificent private collections of minerals in the
United States. Totaling over 10,000 specimens, the R. E. Bruner Min?ral
Collection was renowned for its extraordinary quality and diversity. 4

In 1905, Bruner published an article, "Great Weaith in Minerals," describing
the contribu?%ons of the mining industry to the growth and development of
Kansas City. That same year, he became the first owner of the south resi-
dence commissioned by Rule and erected the semi-octangular wing adjoining

the north facade, to house portions of his mineral collections. Significantly
various minerals, including examples of Galena, Sphalerite, Calcite, and

other specimens, are incrusted in the mortar of the interior walls of the
mineral exhibit room. Bruner christened the residence "Miperal Hall."16

He Tater lost the house through financial failure in 1908.

In his Tater years, Bruner continued his mining affiliations, serving in
vardous offices of local mining and investment firms. These included the
Kansas City-Nevada Cons?gidated Mines Company]8 and the R. E. Bruner Realty
and Investment Company. Roland E. Bruner died in 1941.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION
1. Kansas City Star, September 11, 1934, p. 13, “"New House Built by

Mr. Rule."
. {Continued)
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2. Louis Curtiss, Research Files of Fred T. Comee, including Curtiss'
List of Projects.

3. Conversation between Mrs. Katherine Thompson {daughter of W. A. Rule)
and James A. Ryan, Curator of Collections, Kansas City Museum, January 30, 1¢

4, H. Allen Brooks, The Prairie School, University of Toronto Press,
Toronto, Canada, 1972.

5. Kansas City Star, August 24, 1902, p. 15, "America's Newest Theater,
the Willis Wood to be Opened Tomorrow Night."

6. F. T. Comee, "lLouis Curtiss of Kansas City," Progressive Architecture,
44: 128-34, August 1963.

7. Ibid.
8. Ibid.
9. Ibid.

10. Kansas City Star, November 26, 1899, p. 13, "New Kansas City Homes."

11. Conversation between Mrs. Katherine Thompson (daughter of W. A. Rule)
and James A. Ryan, January 30, 1975. :

12. C. W. Whitney, Kansas City, Missouri, Its History and Its People,
180C-1908, S. J. Clarke Publishing Co., Kansas City, Missouri, 1908,
Vol. II, pp. 262-5.

13. 1bid., pp. 644-50.

14. Kansas City Star, December 6, 1903, p. 5, "Rare Minerals and Gems."

15. J. Donahue, Greater Kansas City Yearbook, Tiernan-Dart Printing Co.,
1905, pp. 9, 102, 161-4,

16. 1Ibid., p. 102

17. Kansas City Star, March 11, 1941, p. 6, "Death of Roland E. Bruner."
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Printing Co., Kansas City, Missouri, p. 50.
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5. Curtiss, Louis, Research Files of Fred T. Comee, including Curtiss' List
of Projects, Kenneth Spencer Research Library of the University of Kansas,
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STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION QFFICER SIGNATURE

Director, Department of Natural Resources DATE
.and State Historic Preservation Qfficer

HIS PROPERTY IS INCLUDED (N THE NATIONAL REGISTER
| ' DATE -

DATE
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#251
"MINERAL HALL" (RESIDENCE OF R.E. BRUNER)

COUNTY: Jackson

LOCATION: 4340 Qak Street, Kansas City, Mo. 64111
OWNER; Kansas City Art Institute

ADDRESS: 4475 Warwick Boulevard, Kansas City, Mo. 64111
DATE APPROVED BY A.C.: 03-05-76

DATE SENT TO JEFF. CITY: 03-09-76

DATE SENT TO D.C.: 03-12-76

DATE OF REC. IN D.C.: 03-16-76

DATE PLACED ON NATIONAL REGISTER: 07-12-76

DATE AWARDED CERTIFICATE
(AND PRESENTOR):

DATE FILE REVIEWED:
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